
   
   

 
   
   
   
   
   

   

  
    
 

  
   

    
  

    

 

         

 

            

               

               

               

             

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CaseNo.
18U.S.C.j19561)
18U.S.C.j1956(a)(2)(A)
18U.S.C.j1956(a)(2)(B)(i)
18U.S.C.j2
18U.S.C.j982(a)(1)

UM TED STATESOF AM ERICA

VS.

ALVARO PULIDO VARGAS,
a/k/atiGerm anEnriqueRubioSalas,''
a/k/adscuchi,''

JOSE GREGORIO W ELM A-MOM ,
EM M ANUEL ENRIQUE RUBIO GONZALEZ,
CARI,OSROLANDOLIZCANOMANRIQUE,aud
ANA GUILLERM O LUIS,

Defendants.

INDICTG NT

TheGrandJurychargesthat:

GENERAI,V LEGATIONS

AtalltimesrelevanttothisIndictment,unlessotherwisespecified:

RELEVANT STATUTORY BACKGROUND

TheForeign CorruptPracticesActof1977,asamended,Title 15,United Stateb-

Code,Sections78dd-1,etseq.(the(TCPA''),wasenactedbyCongressforthepurposeof,among

otherthings,making itunlawfulforcertain classesofpersonsand entitiesto actcorruptly in

furtheranceofan offer,promise,authorization,orpaym entofmoney oranything ofvalueto a

foreigngovenzm entofficialforthepurposeofinfluencingtheforeignofficial,inducingtheforeign
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officialtotakeorom itcertain acts,andsecuringan improperadvantagein orderto assistthose

classesofpersonsinobtainingorretainingbusinessfor,ordirectingbusinessto,anyperson.

RELEVANT INDIW DUAT,SAND ENTITIES

ComitéLocaldeAbastecimientoyProduccitmICCLAP''IwasaVenezuelanstate-

ownedandstate-controlledfoodandm edicinedistributionprogram forthepeopleofVenezuela.

ComercializadoradeBienesYServiciosDe1EstadoTachira(CCOBISERTA'')was

acompanythatwasowned and controlledbytheVenezuelan StateofTachiraandthat,among

otherthings,purchased food forthepeopleofTachira. COBISERTA wasaCûdepartment''

Kçagency,''and fçinstrumentality''of a foreign govenunent,and COBISERTA'S ofticers and

employeeswerellforeignofficials,''asthosetel'msareusedintheFCPA,Title15,UnitedStates

Code,Section 78dd-3(t)(2)(A). COBISERTA'Sofficersand employeeswerealso Ktpublic

officials''asthatterm isusedunderVenezuelanlaw.

CoporaciônVenezolanadeComercioExteriorIGICOR#OVEX''Iwasastate-owned

and stte-controlled entity in Venezuela that managed all import and exportactivities of

Venezueli. CORPO'VEX wasaç'department,''(iagency,''and EEinstrumentality''ofa foreigp

government,and CORPOVEX'Sofficersandemployeeswere<iforeignofficials,''asthoseterms

areusedintheFCPA,Title15,UnitedStatesCode,Section78dd-3(9(2)(A). CORPOVEX'S

officersandemployeeswerealso(Cpublicofficials''asthatterm isusedunderVenezuelan law .

MinisteriodelPoderPopulardeEconomfayFinanzas(GtMinistryofVinance'')was

thegovernmentministryinVenezuelathatoversaw thefinancesofVenezuela.TheM inistryof

Financewasa'Kdepartment,''Stagency,''and EEinstlnamentality''ofaforeign government,andthe

M inistryofFinance'sofficersandemployeeswereçEforeignofficials,''asthosetennsareused in

theFCPA,Title15,UnitedStatesCode,Section78dd-3(t)(2)(A).MinistryofFinance'soffcers
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andemployeeswerealsoGtpublicofficials''asthatterm isusedunderVenezuelanlaw.
A

Fondo de Desarollo NacionalCTONDEN''Iwasthe state-owned and state-

controlledgovernm ententityinVenezuelathatinvestedgovernmentfundsinthebestinterestsof

thepeopleofVenezuela. FONDEN wasaSsdepartment,''EEagency,''and(çinstrumentality''ofa

foreign govelmment,and FONDEN 'Sofficersand employeeswere Ctforeign officials,''asthose

tennsareusedintheFCPA,Title15,UnitedStatesCode,Section78dd-3(t)(2)(A).FONDEN'S

officersandemployeeswerealsoç6publicofficials''asthatterm isusedunderVenezuelanlaw .

BancodeDesarrolloEconémicoySocialdeVenezuela(I%A'NDES''Iwasthestate-

owned and state-controlled government entity in Venezuela that was designed to promote

economic developmentand sustained growth in Venezuela. BANDES wasa (çdepartment''

Scagency,''andttinstrum entality''ofaforeigngovernment,andBANDES'Sofficersandemployees

were(çforeignofticials,''asthosetermsareusedintheFCPA,Title15,UnitedStatesCode,Section

78dd-3(9(2)(A).BANDES'SofficersandemployeeswerealsoEtpublicofficials''asthatterm is

usedunderVenezuelanlaw.

8. COBISERTA and CORPOVEX contracted with companies underthe CLAP

program topurchaseandimportfoodintoVenezuelaandwerealsoresponsibleforoverseeingthe

executionofthosecontracts.CORPOVEX alsocontractedwithcompaniestopurchaseandimport

medicineintoVenezuelaandwasresponsibleforoverseeingtheexecutionofthosecontracts.

9. DefendantAI,VARO PULIDO VARGAS,a/k/aGerm anEnriqueRubioSalas,

a/k/aRcuchi,''wasacitizenofColombia.PULIDO VARGAS,togetherwithCo-conspirator1

(definedbelow),controlledseveralcompaniesthatobtainedcontractsfrom COBISERTA and

CORPOVEX to providefood and medicinetoVenezuela,including Group Grand Limited and

AsasiFood.
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DefendantJOSE GREGORIO W ELM A-M ORA wasa citizen ofVenezuela.

From inoraround2012throughinoraround2017,VIELM A-M OIRA wastheGovernorofthe

Venezuelan StateofTachira. AsGovernor,VIELM A-M OIRA oversaw COBISERTA and its

contracting process. W ELM A-M ORA wasaCiforeign official''asthatterm isdefined in the

FCPA,Title15,UnitedStatesCode,Section78dd-3(9(2)(A),andattpublicofficial''asthatterm

isusedunderVenezuelanlaw.

11. DefendantEM M ANUEL ENRIQUE RUBIO GONZM ZEZ wasacitizen of

ColombiaandthesonofALVARO PULIDO VV GAS,a/k/aGerm anEnriqueRubioSalas,

a/k/aEdcuchi-''

12.

Colombia.

DefendantCARt,OS ROLANDO LIZCANO M ANRIQUE wasacitizen of

DefendantANA GUILLERMO LUIS CGIJILLERMO'')wasa citizen of

VenezuelaandSpain.

Co-conspirator1wasa citizen ofColombia. Co-conspirator1and AI,VARO

PULIDO VARGAS,a/k/a Germ an EnriqueRubio Salas,a/k/a ddcuchi,''controlled several

companiesthatobtained contractsfrom COBISERTA and CORPOVEX to provide food and

medicine.toVenezuela,includingGroupGrandLimitedandAsasiFood.

15. Co-conspirator2wasacitizenofVenezuela.Co-conspirator2wasa(tperson''as

thatterm isusedintheFCPA,Title15,UnitedStatesCode,Section78dd-3(a).

VenezuelanGovernm entOfficial1wasacitizenofVenezuela.From inoraround

October2014,through inoraround September2020,VenezuelanGovernmentOfficial1wasa

high-ranking officialatFONDEN. From in oraround Oc'tober2017, through in oraround

September 2020, Venezuelan Government Official 1 was a high-ranking official for the

Case 1:21-cr-20509-JEM Document 1 Entered on FLSD Docket 10/07/2021 Page 4 of 25 



              

           

                 

             

 

            

             

              

            

             

           

             
 

                

            

 
    
   

           

        

               

        

  
      

  
   

    
  

VenezuelanM inistryofFinance.From inoraroundJanuary2014,tllroughinoraroundSeptember

2020,Venezuelan GovernmentOfficial1wasahigh-rankingofficialofBANDES.Venezuelan

Governm entOfficial1wasaç&foreignofficial''asthatterm isdefinedintheFCPA,Title15,United

StatesCode,Sections78dd-3(9(2)(A),and adlpublic official''asthatterm isused under

Venezuelan law.

17. Venezuelan GovernmentOfficial2 wasacitizen ofVenezuela. Beginning in or

around atleastJuly 2016,Venezuelan Governm ent Official2 was a public officialin the

VenezuelanM inistryofFinance.From inoraroundDecember2017,throughinoraroundM arch

2020,VenezuelanGovernmentOfficial2wasahigh-rankingofticialintheVenezuelanM inistry

ofFinance. Beginning in oraround February 2017,Venezuelan Governm entOfficial2 wasa

high-rankingofficialofBANDES.BeginninginoraroundJune2018,Venezuelan Government

Official)wasahigh-rankingofficialofCORPOVEX.VenezuelanGovernmentOfficial2wasa
1 .

(Toreignofficial''asthatterm isdefinedintheFCPA,Title15,UnitedStatesCode,Section78dd-

3(9(2)(A),anda&çpublicofficial''asthatterm isusedunderVenezuelanlaw.

COUNT 1
ConspiracytoCom m itM oneyLaundering

(18U.S.C.j1956(h))

Paragraphs lthrough 17 ofthe GeneralAllegations Section arere-alleged and

incorporatedbyreferenceasthoughf'ullysetforthherein.

From inoraroundJuly2015,andcontinuingthroughinoraroundatleast2020,in

theSouthernDislrictofFlorida,andelsewhere,thedefendants,

M UVARO PULIDO VAAGAS,
a/k/aRGerm anEnriqueRubioSalas,''a/k/aRcuchi,''

JOSE GREGORIO W ELM A-M OM ,
EMM ANUEL ENRIQUERUBIO GONZALEZ,

CART,OSROLANDO LIZCANO M ANRIQUE,and
ANA GUILLERM O LUIS,
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didknowinglyandvoluntarilycom bine,conspire,confederateandagreewitheachother,andother

personsknown andunknowntotheGrandJury,tocommitanoffenseagainsttheUnited States,

thatis:

a. to knowingly transport,transmit,and transferamonetary instrumentand funds

from aplaceintheUnitedStatestoandthroughaplaceoutsidetheUnitedStates,andtoaplace

intheUnitedStatesfrom andthroughaplaceoutsidetheUnitedStates,withtheintenttoprom ote

thecarryingonofspecifiedunlawfulactivity,inviolationofTitle18,UnitedStatesCode,Section

1956(a)(2)(A);

b. toknowinglytransporqtransmit,andtransfer,andattempttotranspolt transmit,

and transfer,a monetary instrumentand fundsinvolving the proceedsof specified unlawful

activity,from aplaceintheUnitedStatestoandthroughaplaceoutsidetheUnitedStates,andto .

aplaceintheUnitedStatesfrom andthroughaplaceoutsidetheUnitedStytes,knowingthatthe

fundsinvolvedinthetransportation,transmission,andtransferrepresentedtheproceedsofsome

unlawfulactivityandknowingthatsuchtransportation,transmission,andtransferandattemptto

transpolttransmit,andtransferwasdesignedinwholeor'inparttoconcealanddisguisethenature,

location,source,ownership,and controlbftheproceedsofsuch specifiedunlawfulactivity,in

violationofTitlel8,UnitedStatesCode,Section1956(a)(2)(B)(i);and

Itisfurtherallegedthatthespecifiedunlawfulactivityis:(a)afelonyviolationoftheFCPA

'underTitle15,UnitedStatesCode,Section78dd-3;and(b)anoffenseagainstaforeignnation,

specificallyVenezuela,involvingbriberyofapublicoffcial,andthemisappropriation,theA,and

embezzlementofpublicfundsbyandforthebenefitofapublicoffcial,asprovidedbyTitle18,

UnitedStatesCode,Section1956(c)(7)(B)(iv).
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PVRPOSE OFTHF CONSPIM CY

3. ltwasthepurposeoftheconspiracyfortheddfendantsandtheirco-conspiratorsto

unlawfullyerlrichthem selvesbyengaginginaschem etobribeVenezuelanofficialstoobtainand

retainçontractsandotherbusinessadvantages,tncludingobtainingmulti-milliondollarfoodand

medicinecontractswith entitiesand instrumentalitiesowned and controlled bytheVenezuelan

govenzmentfortheimportationanddeliveryoffoodandm edicineto'thepeopleofVenezuela,and

to launderbribes,proceeds,and otherfundsrelated to the corruptschem e into and through
. ('-

accountsintheUnited Statesin ordertopromotetheillegalbribery schemeandto concealthe

natureandpurposeoftheproceedsoftheillegalbriberyscheme.

M ANNER AND M EANS OF TIIE CONSPIM CY

The mannerand means by which ALVARO PULIDO VARGAS,a/k/a idGerman

EnriqueRubioSalas,''a/k/aRcuchi,''JOSE GREGORIO W ELM A-M OR A,EM M AM JEL

ENRIQUERUBIOGONZAT,EZ,CART,OSFOLANDOLIZCANOMANRIQIJE,andM A

GUILLERM O LUIS,and their co-conspirators sought to accomplish the purpose ofthe .
1

conspiracyincluded,am ongotherthings,thefollowingconductintheSouthernDistrictofFlorida

andelsewhere:

Throughoutthecourseoftheconspiracyandassetforthintheparagraphstofollow,

AI,VARO PIJLI'DO VARGAS, a/k/a German Enrique Rubio Salas, a/k/a dtcuchi,''

EM MANUEL ENRIQUE RUBIO GONZALEZ, CARI,OS ROLANDO LIZCANO

MANRIQUE,ANAGUILLERMOLUiS,aswellasCo-conspirator1andotherco-conspirâtors

used numerouscompanies,which they controlled,to enterinto contractswith the Venezuelan

governmenttomanufacm reand exportboxesoffoodfrom M exicoandboxesofmedicinefrom

variouscountries,toimporttheboxesoffoodandm edicineanddistributethem withinVenezuela,

7
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toreceivemoneypursuanttothecontractsawardedbytheVenezuelangovernment,tom akebribe

paymentstotheVenezuelangovernmentofficials,includingthoseofficialsinchargeofawarding

the contracts,and ultimately to distribute the proceedsofthe corruptly obtained contractsto

promotetheillegalbriberyschemeandtoconcealthenatureandpurposeoftheproceedsofthe

illegalbriberyscheme.

5. Throughoutthecourseoftheconspiracyandassetforthintheparagraphstofollow,

At-vwuo I'ti too vwutu s,a/k/a German Enrique Rubio salas,a/k/a ''cuchi,',

EM M ANUEL ENRIQUE RUBIO GONZALEZ, CART,OS ROLANDO LIZCANO

M ANRIQUE,ANA GUILLERM O LUIS,as wellas Co-conspirator 1 and other co-

conspirators,created a web ofdozens of personaland corporate bank accounts in multiple

countrieswhichtheyusedtoreceiveandtransfertheproceedsofthecorruptlyobtainedcontracts

whileconcealingtheoriginanduseofthemoniesobtainedthroughthecorruptschem e.

ln or around 2015,AT,VARO PULIDO VARGAS,a/k/a Germ an Enrique

Rubio Salas,a/k/a Hcuchi,''EM M ANUEL ENRIQUE RUBIO GONZAt,EZ,CARLOS

ROLANDO LIZCANO M ANW QUE,Co-conspirator1and otherco-conspiratorjinitiated

effortstoobtain contractsrelatedtotheproduction,importation,and distribution offoodtothe

Venezuelangovernm ent.

As the Governor of the Venezuelan State of Tachira, JOSE GREGORIO

W ELM A-M ORA oversaw the contracting process related to the importation of food into

VenezuelafordistributiontothepeopleintheStateofTachiraaspal'toftheCLAPprogram .

lnoraroundearlytomid-2016,JOSE GREGORIO W ELM A-M ORA m etwith

Co-conspiratorlandCo-conspirator2anddiscussedW ELM A-M ORA'Sroleintheimportation

offoodtotheStateofTachirainVenezuela.

8
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Inorarotmdearlytom id-2016,JOSE GREGORIO VIELM A-M OM metwith

cART,OsROLANbO LIZCANO M ANRTQUE,Co-conspirator1,andCo-conspirator2to

discussaproposalfortheproduction,importation,anddistributionofboxesoffoodtothepeople

ofVenezuelathroughtheCLAPprogram .

10. In or around early to m id-2016,atJOSE GREGORIO .W ELM A-M ORA'S

direction,Co-conspirator2createdaproposalforthediscussedboxesoffood.

ln or around early to m id-2016, JOSE GREGORIO VV LM A.M OM ,

CARLOSROLANDO LIZCANO M ANRIQUE,Co-conspirator1,andCo-conspirator2met

inVenezuelaanddiscussedtheactualcostfortheproductionofthefoodboxes.

12. Co-conspirator 1 agreed to m ake corrupt payments to JOSE GREGORIO

W ELM A-M ORA toobtainandretaincontractstoimportandsellfoodtotheStateofTachira.

lnorarotmdearlytomid-2016,Co-conspirator1directedCARLOSROLANDO

LIZCANO M ANRIQUEandCo-conspirator2toworktogethertoproducetheboxesoffoodfor

importationintoVenezuela.

lnoraroundmidto1ate-2016,JOSEGREGORIO W ELM A-M OIRA CARI,OS

ROLANDO LIZCANO M ANRIQUE,Co-conspirator 1 and Co-conspirator2 metwith

Venezuelan GovernmentOfticials 1 and 2 in orderto obtain the supportand approvalof

VenezuelanGovernmentOfficial1and2forawardingthefoodcontractstocompaniescontrolled

byAI,VARO PIJLIDO VARGAS,a/k/aGerm anEnriqueRubioSalas,a/k/adscuchi''andCo-

Conspirator1.

15. On oraboutOctober 14,2016,Group Grand Lim ited- acompany owned and

controlled by AI,VARO PULIDO VARGAS,a/k/a Germ an Enrique Rubio Salas,a/k/a

Sdcuchi''andCo-conspiratorl--obtainedacontractfrom COBISERTA toimpot'tanddistribute

9
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approximately10millionboxesoffoodtmdertheCLAPprogram at$34/b0xforatotalcontract

amountofapproximately$340,000,000.AlthoughJOSE GREGORIO VIELM A-M ORA knew

thecostôfproducingandimportingthefoodboxeswasfarlessthan$34/box,heagreedwithhis

co-conspiratorstoallow COBISERTA topurchasetheboxesataninflatedpricesothattheco-

/

conspirators could use th: additionalflmds to pay bribes to VIELM A-M ORA and other

Venezu8langovernmentofficialsandtoobtainmillionsofdollarsofcom zptproceedsfrom the

scheme.

16. ln furtheranceofthecônspiracy,ALVARO PULID O VARGAS,a/k/a Germ an

EnriqueRubioSalas,a/k/aRcuchir''EMM ANUEL ENRIQUE RUBIO GONZALEZ,and
. '

otherswereresponsibleforpurchasingfoodinM exico,constructingtheboxesthatwouldcontain

thefood,andexportingtheboxesoffoodfrom M exicotoVenezuela.

In furthefance àf the conspiracy, CARIX S ROLANDO LIZCANO

M ANRIQUEandotherswereresponsibleforreceivingtheboyesoffoodsenttoVenezuelafrom

M exico.anddistributingthe'boxesoffoodwithintheStateofTachira.

18. Inoraroundmidto1ate-2016,JOSE GREGORIO W ELM A-M ORA metwith

co-consptrators1and2anddiscussedhow VIELMA-MORA wouldreceivethebribemoney
.<

owedtohim forhispartinawardingthefoodcontractstocompaniescontrolledby,andforthe

benetitof?ALVARO PULIDOVARGAS,a/k'/aGermanEnriqueRubioSalas,a/lt/addcuchi,''

Co-conjpirator 1 and the other co-conspirators. During the meeting,the co-conspirators

determ inedthatCo-conspirator2would serveasan intermediaty toreceivethebribem oney on

behalfofVIELM A-M ORA. Thereafter,Co-conspirator2 would forwayd,pay,transfer,and

directthosebribestoVIELM A-M OR A asW ELM A-M OR A directed.Coiconspirator2would

alsoreceivepaymentsférhispartintheillegalbriberyscheme.

10
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19 ANA GUILLERM O LUIS,who worked for ATI,VARO PULIDO VARGAS,

a/k/aGerm anEnriqueRubioSalas,a/k/aRcuchi''andCo-conspirator1,helpedcreateaweb

of-dozensofcompaàiesand associatedbank accountsinvariouscountriesforPtltzloo

VARGAS,Co-conspirator1,andotherco-conspiratorstoreceiveandmovethemoneyreceived

from Venezuelaaspaymentforthecornlptlyobtainedfoodandm edicinecontracts.Alongthese

lines,GUILLERM O helpedCo-conspirator2openbankaccounts,whichCo-conspirator2used

to'receive,pay,andtransferfundsasabribeinterm edialy forW ELM A-M ORA,andtocollect

Co-conspirator 2's share ofthe coauptproceeds. Likewise,GUILLERM O helped create

companiesand open associated bank accountsto allow otherco-conspiratorsto receivetheir

portionofthecorruptproceedsfrom theillegalbriberyscheme.GUILLERM O alsohelpedcreate

fakeandfraudulentcontractsandotherdocumentstojustifythetransfersoffunds,bribes,and

corruptproceedsrelatedtothescheme.

20. From onoraboutDecember12,2016,throughonoraboutApril10,2018,JOSE

GREGORIO W ELM A-M ORA andCo-corispirator2receivedapproximately$17,256,935in

bribes and corruptproceeds in exchange forVIELM A-M OIG 'Sassistanceand influence in

awardingfoodcontractsfrom COBISERTA andCORPOVEX andprovidingbusinessadvantages

forthe benefitofcompanies controlled by ALVARO PULIDO VARGAS,a/lk/a Germ an

Enrique Rubio Salas,a/k/a Rcuchil',EM M ANUEL ENRIQUE RUBIO GONZALEZ,

CARI,OSROLM DO LIZCANO M ANRIQUE,ANA GUILLERM O LUIS,Co-conspirator

1,andothers.

From on oraboutDecember12,2016,throughon oraboutJuly 17,2017,JOSE

GREGORIO W ELM A-M ORA and Co-conspirator2 causedwiretransfersofapproxim ately

$6,355,158inproceedsfrom theillegalbriberyschemetoabankaccountintheSouthernDistrict
1

1.1
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ofFloridaownedandcontrolled by Co-conspirator2.Amongthesewiretransfers,on orabèut

February 11,2017,Co-conspirator2,while in the United States,caused a wire transfer of

approximately$1,600,000from abankaccounthecontrolledinPanamato abank accounthe

controlledintheSouthernDistrictofFloridainordertoprom otetheillegalbriberyschemeandto

facilitatethetransferofbribepaym entstoW ELM A-M ORA.

22. On oraboutFebruary 14,2017,Group Grand Limited,a company owned and

controlled by AT,VARO PULIDO VARGAS,a/lt/a German Enrique Rubio Salas,a/k/a

Rcuchi''and Co-conspirator 1 obtained a second contractto importand distribute within

Venezuelaapproximately 10m illionboxesoffoodthroughtheCLAPprogram forapproximately

$369,900,000.'

23. ln addition to thefood contracts,in oraround early 2017,AI,VARO PULIDO

VARGAS,a/k/aGerm anEnriqueRubioSalas,a/k/aSdcuchi''and'Co-conspirator1soughtto

obtain contractsto expol'tm edicineto,and distribute itwithin,Venezuelathrough theCLAP

program throughthepaymentofbribestoVenezuelangovernmentofficials,includingVenezuelan

GovernmentOfficials1and2.

24. On or aboutM arch 31,2017,Group Grand Limited,a company owned and

controlled by AI,VARO PULIDO VARGAS,a/k/a Germ an Enrique Rubio Salas,a/k/a

ticuchi''and Co-conspirator1 obtained a contractfrom CORPOVEX forapproximately

$70,889,234toimportanddistributemedioineinVenezuelathroughtheCLAPprogram.

OnoraboutM ay22,2017,GroupGrandLimited,acompanyownedandcontrolled

byAI,VARO PULIDO VARGAS,a/k/aGermanEnriqueRubioSalas,a/k/aRcuchi''andCo-

Conspirator 1 obtained a second contract from CORPOVEX,this one for approximately

$74,990,942,toimportanddistributemedicineinVenezuelathroughtheCLAPprogram.

12
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In oraround July 2017,m embersoftheconspiracy receivedwiretransfersfrom

FOINDEN totalingapproximately$33,750,295toanaccountinAntiguaheldinthenameofGroup

Grand Limited,a company owned and controlled by AT,VARO PULIDO VARGAS,a/k/a

GermanEnriqueRubioSalas,a/k/addcuchi''andCo-conspirator1,aspaymentonthecorruptly

obtainedfoodandmedicinecontractsobtainedfrom theVenezuelangovernm ent.

From inoraroundJanuary2018,throughinoraroundM arch2018,membersofthe

conspiracyreceivedwiretransfersfrom BANDES totalingapproximately $105,001,292 to an

accountinUnitedArabEm iratesheldinthenam eofAsasiFood,acompanyownedandcontrolled

byALVARO PULIDO VARGAS,a/k/aGermanEnriqueRubioSalas,alkladdcuchi''andCo-

Conspirator1,aspaym entonthecorruptly obtainedfoodandmedicinecontractsobtainedfrom

theVenezuelangovernment.

28. From inoraroundJanuary20l8,throughinoraroundM ay2018,membersofthe

conspiracy received wiretransfersfrom BANDES totaling approximately 6248,727,831 to an

accountinUnitedArabEmkatesheldinthenameofAsasiFood,acompapyownpdandcontrolled

byAI,VARO PULIDO VARGAS,a/lk/aGerm anEnriqueRubioSalas,a/lk/aKcuchi''andCo-

Conspirator1,aspaymenton thecorruptlyobtainedfoodandm edicinecontractsobtainedfrom

theVenezuelangovernm ent.

29. During the course of the conspiracy,AT,VM R.O PULIDO VARGAS, a/k/a

German Enrique Rubio Sal>s, a/lk/a Gcuchi,'' CARI,OS ROLANDO LIZCANO

M ANRIQUE,andCo-conspirator1,usinginparttheproceedsreceivedbyGroupGrandLimited

andAsasiFoodspursuanttothecolruptlyobtainedfoodandmedicinecontractsandusingm onies

from othercompaniesundertheircontrol,wiretransferred,and causedtobewiretransferred,at

least$10,000,000inproceedsandothermoniesdirectlytobankaccountsintheUnitedStates
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owned,controiledbyandforthebenefitofco-conspiratorsandothers.Thesewiretransferswere

m adeinordertoconcealanddisguisethenature,location,source,ownership,and controlofthe

proceedsandtopromotethebriberyscheme. Atleast$5,500,000ofthosefundswerewired

directly intotheSouthernDistrictofFlorida.

AT,VARO PULIDO VARGAS,a/lc/a

GermanEnriqueRubioSalas,a/lk/aSdcuchi,''andCo-conspiraior1wiretransferred,andcaused

tobewiretransferred,ontheirbehalf,atleast$170,000,000inproceedsandothermoniesthrough

30. During the course of the conspiracy,

correspondentbanksintheUnitedStatestobarlkaccountsowned,controlledby,andforthebenefit

ofco-conspirators;foodsuppliers,transportationlogisticcompanies,andothers. Thesewire

transfersweremadeinordertoconcealanddisguisethenature,location,source,ownership,and

controloftheproceedsandtoprom otethebriberyscheme.

During the course ofthe conspiracy,Group Grand Limited and AsasiFoods,

companiesowned and controlled by ALVARO PULIDO VARGAS,a/k/a German Enrique

RubioSalas,a/k/alcuchi''andCo-conspirator1,specificallywiretransferred,andcausedtobe

wiretransferred,atleaàt$22,000,000inproceedsandothermoniestoafreightforwardingand

shippingcompanylocatedinM exico,throughoorrespondentbank aocountsintheUnitedStates,

topay forcostsassociated with fulflling theCOBISERTA and CORPOVEX contracts.These

wiretransfersweremadeinordertoconcealanddisguisethenature,location,source,ownership,

andcontroloftheproceedsandtopromotethebriberyschem e.

32. During the course ofthe conspiracy,Group Grand Limited and AsasiFoods,

companiesowned and controlled by M UVARO PU. LIDO VARGAS,a/k/a Germ an Enrique

RubioSalas,a/k/aSdcuchi''andCo-conspirator1specificallywiretransferred,andcausedtobe

wiretransferred,atleast$50,000,000inproceedsandothermoniestoafoodservicecompany

14
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locatedin M exico,through correspondentbank accountsin theUnited States,topay forcosts

associatedwithfulfillingtheCOBIIERTAandCORPOVEXcontracts.Thesewiretransferswere

m adein orderto concealanddisguisethenature,location,source,ownership,andcontrolofthe

proceedsandtopromotethebriberyscheme.

33. Duringthecourseoftheconspiracy,Venezuela'sabilitytopayforeigncompanies

waslim ited due to a shortage ofU.S.dollars. Therefore,in furtherance ofthe scheme,Co-

Conspirator1and ALVARO PULIDO VARGAS,a/k/a GermanEnriqueRubioSalas,a/k/a

ddcuchi''engaged in businesstorefineand sellgoldonbehalfofVenezuela,sothatVenezuela

could obtain additionalU.S.dollarsoreurostomakethepaym entsowedtoforeign companies,

including to Group Grand Limited and AsasiFoodsunderthe corruptly obtained food and

medicinecontracts.

34. On or aboutM arch 6,2019, Co-conspirator 2,while in the United States,

authorizedthétransferoffundsatthe direction ofandforthe benefitofJOSE GREGORIO

W ELM A-M ORA from a bank accountin the Southern DistrictofFloridato individualsand

entitiesthatW ELM A-M ORA specified,al1infurtheranceoféndtopromotethebribel'yscheme.

35. On or aboutAugust 5,2019,Co-conspirator 2,while in the United States,

authorized a credit card transaction using Co-conspirator 2's credit card in order to pay

approximately$4,499toatravelwebsitefora.closerelativeofJOSE GREGORIO VIELM A-

M ORA,atthedirection ofandforthebenefk ofW ELM A-M ORA,allinfurtheranceofandto

promotethebriberyscheme.

A1linviolationofTitle18,UnitedStatesCode,Section1956(h).

15
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COUNTS2-5
LaunderingofM onetaryInstruments

(18U.S.C.j1956(a)(2)(A))

Paragraphs 1through 17 ofthe GeneralAllegationsSection and paragraphs 1

through35ofCount1arere-allegedandincorporatedbyreferenceasthoughfullysetfol'thherein.

2. On oraboutthedatessetforth ineach Countbelow,intheSouthern Districtof

Floridaandelsewhere,thedefendànts,

ALVARO PULIDO VARGAS,
a/k/aRGerm anEnriqueRubioSalas,''a/k/atdcuchi,''

JOSE GREGORIO W ELM A-M OIW
EMM ANUELENRIQUERUBIO GONZALEZ,

CART,OSROLANDO LIZCANO M ANRIQUE,and
ANA GUHULERM O LUIS,

knowingly transported,transm itted,and transferred,and aided and abetted,and caused the

transport,transm ission,and transf4r of,and attempted to transport,transmit,and transfer,a

monetaryinstrum entand
.
fundsfrom aplaceintheUnitedStatesto andtlzrough aplaceoutside

theUnitedStatesandto aplaceintheUnitedStatesfrom andthroughaplaceoutsidetheUnited

States,withtheintenttopromotethecarryingonofspecifiedunlawfulactivity,thatis,(a)afelony

violationoftheFCPA underTitle15,UnitedStatesCode,Section7881d-3and(b)anoffense

againsta'foreignnation,specifically Venezuela,involving briberyofapublicoffcial,and the

misappropriation,theft andembezzlementofpublicfundsby andforthebenefitofapublic

official,pursuanttoTitle18,UnitedStatesCode,Section1956(c)(7)@)(iv).

16
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Count Approxim ateDate Description öfTransaction

2 December23,2016 W ire transfer in the amount of approxim ately
$1,599,965.00 in U.S.currency from an account in
Panamato abankaccountending in 9752,locatedinthe
United States,specifically in the Southern District of
Florida

3 February 11,2017 W ire transfer in the amount of approxim ately
$1,599,965.00 in U.S.currency from an account in
Panamatoabankaccountendingin 9752,located inthe
United States,specifically in the Southern District of
Florida

4 July5,2017 W ire transfer in the amount of approxim ately
$2,500,000.00 in U.S.currency from an account in'

j AntiguaandBarbudatoa bank accountending in 9752
,

located intheUnited States,specifically intheSouthern
DistrictofFlorida

5 August23,2017 W iretransferintheamountofapproximately$630,000.00
inU.S.currencyfrom anaccountinAntiguaandBarbuda
to abank accountending in 9752,located in theUnited
States,specifically intheSouthernDistrictofFlorida

InviolationofTitle18,UnitedStatesCode,Sections1956(a)(2)(A)and2.

FORFEITURE
(18U.S.C.j982(a)(1))

TheallegationsofthisIndictm entareherebyre-allegedandbythisreferencefully

incorporatedhereinforthepurposeofallegingforfeituretotheUnitedStatesofAmericaofcertain

property in which any ofthe defendants,AT,VARO PULIDO VARGAS,a/k/a RGerm an

EnriqueRubioSalas,''a/k/aRcuchi,''JOSE GREG ORIO W ELM A-M OM ,EM M ANUEL

ENRIQUE RUBIO GONZALEZ.CARI,OS ROLANDO LIZCANO M ANRTQUE,and

ANA GUILLERM O LUIS,havean interest.

2. Upon convictionofaviolationofTitle 18,United StatesCode,Section 1956,as

alleged in thisIndictment,thedefendantsshallforfeittotheUnited Statesany property,realor

17
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personal,involvedinsuchoffense,andanypropertytraceabletosttchproperty,pursuanttoTitle

18,UnitedStatesCode,Section982(a)(1).

Thepropertysubjecttoforfeitureasaresultoftheallegedoffensesincludes,butis

notlimitedto,asum ofapproximately$1,607,626,307.19inU.S.currency,whichrepresentsthe

amountoffunbsinvolvedintheviolationsofTitle18,UnitedStatesCode,Section1956alleged

inthislndictment,andwhichmaybesoughtasaforfeituremoneyjudgment.

4. Ifanyofthepropertydescribedaboveasbeingsubjecttoforfeiture,asaresultofb

anyactoromissionofthedefendants:

a.
.

cannotbelocatedupontheexerciseofduediligence;

b. hasbeentransferredorsoldto,ordepositedwith,athirdparty;

hasbeenplacedbeyondthejurisdictionoftheCoul't;

d. hasbeen substantiallydiminishedinvalue;or

hasbeen comm ingledwithotherpropertythatcannotbedividedwithout .

difficulty;

theUnitedStatesshallbeentitledtoforfeitureofsubstituteproperty,undertheprovisionsof

Title2l,UnitedStatesCode,Section853j9.
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AllpursuanttoTitle18,UnitedStatesCode,Section982(a)(1),andtheproceduressetfol'th

in Title21,United StatesCode,Section 853,asincorporated by Title 18,United StatesCode,

Section982(b)(1).

A TRUE BILL

FOREPE

3 .F >a
SEPH S.BEEM STERBOER

ACTm G CHIEF,FRAUD SECTION
cltlM m At,DIVISION

/
1

Ax'oxlooxzvzz& ACTGUNITESTATESATTORNEY

KurtK.'L n elmer
AssistantUnitedStatesAttorney

4 ZM
AlexanderJ.Kram er
TrialAttorney

19

Case 1:21-cr-20509-JEM Document 1 Entered on FLSD Docket 10/07/2021 Page 19 of 25 




